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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RREEERMRR

As at 31 December 2011 = i

2011 2010
MNote uss'o00 US$'000
Logs FET T
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights T i {E A e 3 2,200 654
Property, plant and equipment WE B REE 7 157,547 174,013
Intangible assets EREE 8 13,953 15,049
Prepayment for property, plant and WME - WERREZ
equipment BRI 27 200
Long-term loan and receivables EHEI R ERE 329 -
Investment in an associate il |- BN g
=8 10 1,008 1,230
Deferred income tax assets A FT ST E B 18 42 -
Total non-current assets drBHEELHE 175,106 191,146
Current assets ABEE
Inventories T#E 11 95,338 83,193
Trade receivables FE U B 2 AR 20 12 32,714 40,328
Amount due from the non-controlling FE LT i 2 R AR
interest of a subsidiary HECEE 1,431 1,308
Prepayments and other receivables TEMEEREHM
FE W T I8 11,219 7,950
Current income tax recoverable BN ER ] W Bl FR 15 8 41 -
Cash and cash equivalents B&REBEEFEWD 13 45,518 34,536
186,261 167,315
Non-current assets held for sale HiEHEERBEE 6(ii) - 12,415
Total current assets HEh A 186,261 179,730
Total assets HESHE 361,367 370,876
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of FoEIHE AL
the Company o E
Share capital HE AR 14 15,228 15,228
Reserves {Ei]
— Proposed final dividend — R EARR 15, 26 4,740 3,670
— Others —H A 15 251,870 245,647
271,838 264,545
Non-contralling interest IEIE R (217) 1,631
Total equity mEeE 271,621 266,176

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

GREERM/R

As at 21 December 2011  —F+_F =18

2011 2010
Note Uss$'000 Us$'000
ft & FER FET
LIABILITIES - Bi
Non-current liabilities ERBRAS
Bank borrowings WITEE 17 9,946 15,259
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFEHAERE 18 6,538 7,513
Long-term payable to a related party EHEREATZ
FEHRE 34(d) - 2,074
Pravision for long service payment £ HA Al 75 & 75 4 1,277 1,179
Total non-current liabilities kRBRAERE 17,761 26,025
Current liabilities ik =R
Trade payables FETE SRR 16 23,817 26,030
Accruals and other payables EaBRAEHM
EA R E 12,846 19,847
Due to related parties EREREALTRE  34(d) 2,399 2,280
Bank borrowings B|ITEE 17 22,813 23,596
Current portion of non-current bank ERBBITEES
borrowings B B & 45 17 5314 4,279
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFEHARE 4,796 2,643
Total current liabilities HBRAEEHE 71,985 78,675
Total liabilities AEAE 89,746 104,700
Total equity and liabilities EERAMEAE 361,367 370,876
Net current assets HBEETE 114,276 101,055
Total assets less current liabilities EERERAHAS 289,382 292,201

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.

MiSr BESERUTH FINATHERES-

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
H|EE b Fok =

Director Directar

EF EH

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEREX

Asg at 31 Decemnber 2011 =

2011 2010
Note US$°000 US$'000
it o FET FET
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets BREE 8 3,828 5,037
Investments in subsidiaries RHEARZES q 165,241 170,390
Long-term loan to a subsidiary ol i 110 BN
EEAEE: 9 13,200 10,500
Investment in an associate e — EEE Bl
il 10 1,230 1,230
Total non-current assets ErBEELE 183,499 187,157
Current assets wEh .
Due from subsidiaries FE L it 2 B RIE 9 50,146 50,809
Prepayments and other receivables B RIERE
H At i Uy 50 I8 2,262 1,737
Current income tax recoverable EPEA R Yo Bl P4 36 9 -
Cash and cash equivalents BEREEHEED 13 723 1,151
Total current assets AR EESE 53,140 53,697
Total assets HEME 236,639 240,854
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of FLEIHEAE AEN
the Company 1 A
Share capital e & 14 15,228 15,228
Reserves 5 fid )
— Proposed final dividend —EEXRERE 15, 26 4,740 3,670
— Others —Hith 15 206,497 207,032
Total equity R R 226,465 225,930
LIABILITIES fafm
Non-current liability E Sl bR
Long-term payable to a related party EAEHEATZ
EHRE 34(d) - 2,074
Current liabilities HER
Accruals and other payables EatEEE
H{hFE 31§ 1,925 1,282
Bank borrowings BITIEE 17 5,850 9,288
Due to a related party FET S R A 3 34(d) 2,399 2,280
Total current liabilities BB EeSE 10,174 12,850
Total liabilities 1§ b3 10,174 14,924
Total equity and liabilities REpAELE 236,639 240,854
Net current assets MEEERE 42,966 40,847
Total assets less current liabilities BREERGDHAEE®E 226,465 228,004

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.
HERRCRESEFMTATIALIERES-

YANG, Tou-Hsiung

YANG, Kun-Hsiang

BES otk
Directar Directar
EF wE

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staterents.
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Consolidated Income Statement

Ga sk

Year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
MNote uss'000 Us$'000
bt & FER FETT
Revenue W 75 19 382,900 336,107
Cost of sales HERS 21 (326,676) (278,251)
Gross profit EFH 56,224 57,856
Other losses — net H At B 18 — 5 58 20 {311) (2,076)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERIEHE
held for sale ERBMEE ZUE 6l 31 8,464 =
Selling and distribution expenses HE R DA 21 (22,407) (16,393)
Administrative expenses TTHEHE= 21 {29,648) (24,897)
Compensation to farmers B REFEE 22 - (11,807)
Operating profit EEEFH 12,322 2,683
Finance income B I i A 741 968
Finance costs BB H (1,820) (1,696)
Finance costs - net B EEH— S 23 (1,079) (728)
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FEEE 2D IR A
I 1 10 (222) -
Profit before income tax BArEBmEFR 11,021 1,855
Income tax expense FiEHRAX 24 (5,084) (4,582)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERFA(EE) 25 5,937 (2,627)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: BT &R EGRR
(EE8)
Owners of the Company FL AR A 7,902 (1,480)
Mon-controlling interest FE 1 AR A £ (1,965) (1,147)
5,937 (2,627)
Earnings/(losses) per share for profit/ #HL4T#WEAEETA
(loss) attributable to the owners of A (EFE) 2z
the Company during the year SREF - (EHEHE)
(expressed in US cents per share) (LEREWTIE)
Basic earnings/(losses) per share SREXRRA
(#58) 27 0.52 (0.10)
Diluted earnings/(losses) per share SREERR
(H58) 27 0.52 (0.10)
Dividends B2 26 4,740 3,670

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
B ESSEI125EmM A NEKIFE S SRR — 8-
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEEZEHWER

Year ended 21 December 2011 & =

2011 2010
Note uss'o000 Us$'000
M FE=x FET
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEBF(FER) 5,937 (2,627)
Other comprehensive income Hit = ml A
Currency translation differences EH=%8E 15 3,178 1,992
Total comprehensive income/{loss) FEEZEWBAS
for the year (H518)&m 9,115 (635)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) BTEFEEEEE
for the year attributable to: ZEWA S (BE)
=R
— Owners of the Company —EoafiE A 10,963 419
- Non-controlling interest — RN HE (1,848) {1,054)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEEFEHBAN.S
for the year (i518) A S 115 (635)

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
B 555 1258 Bt ot THIE R iR & Bt 75 Hi F= 8 — 8R4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEREEEX

Year ended 31 December 2011 BE_F——E+ _A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LARRANG
Non-
Share Share Exthange Merger Retained controlling Total
capital pramium TBSEFVE [T earnings Total Interest equity
L £ M Eig® SRER FEEH 25 FERES EE
LIS§'004 53000 US§ D00 15§ 000 US§' 000 Us§'o0d Us3'000 Us5'000
T*xn T TER T£R FET TER TR
Balance at 1 January 2010 15,228 47,358 10,304 79,994 116,078 168,966 2,685 71,651
Comprehensive income
Loss far the year (1,480} (1,480 11,147 (2,627)
Other comprahensive income
Currency translation differenices EYE® - 1,899 - 1,899 92 1,882
Total comprehensive incame/(loss) 2AGAS (ERI2E : 1,899 (1,480} 418 {1,054} (635)
Total transactions with owners HEFLZATRE
Dividends paid relating to 2009 {4,840} 14,840 (4,840
Balance at 31 December 2010 HoR-BEt-R=t-R2
43 15,228 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 264,545 1,631 166,176
Balance at 1 January 2011 15,228 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 264,545 1,631 266,176

Comprehensive income 2ERA

g

Prafittloss} for the year 35
Other comprehensive income REZEHM

Currency translation differances 3,061 3,061 17 1173
Total comprehensive incame FEARARE - 3,061 . 7,502 10,963 {1,848} 5115
Total transactions with owners ERFLCATRE
Dividends paid relating to 2010 —F-FEHEsEREE - - - - (3,670} 13,670 - (3,670)
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=8--%+-A=+-H2

gx 1522 47 358 15,268 79,984 113,540 171,838 217) 7,621

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

A ESSE125R B e TR IE & IS MR e — B {7 -

Annual Report 2011 F # 53



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2011 HE_—_F——F+ - H=

+—BILER

2011 2010
Mote uss'o00 us$'o00
iDE=: FTER FET
Cash flows from operating activities EEEREL S
BERE
Cash generated from operations EBEECRE 31 16,179 21,960
Interest paid B 15 1l & (913) (447)
Income taxes paid 2 14 Fri5 8 (3,989) (5,033)
Met cash generated from operating mERREL S
activities BEFE 11,277 16,480
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELZ
BEHRE
Purchases of property, plant and MEDE - -EER
equipment % 7 (10,719) {16,802)
Long-term prepayment of property, M EERRH
plant and equipment < EHEMRIE 173 903
Proceeds from sale of property, HEDE -BEE
plant and equipment A 2 FTig R IE 31 296 166
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets M R
held for sale B EEE
Z s aE 31 19,305 -
Purchases of intangible assets and MESEEEER
land use rights + it {5 B i 6, 8 = {1,633)
Redemption of held-to-maturity WEREE=REHZ
financial assets & E = 2,959
Investment in an associate REBELAZEE 10 - (1,230)
Interest received from held-to-maturity EWHEEEREZ
financial assets Bt & 2 7.8 - 61
Met cash generated from/{used in) EERES S
investing activities (FrA)zH&3E 9,055 (15,576)
Cash flows from financing activities HMEIBELE-
HERR
Dividends paid B 1 ik 8 26 (3,670) {4,840)
Net change in current bank borrowings BIERSRTTIE E
B EE (783) 344
Proceeds fram non-current bank JERNERIRITIE B
borrowings Fris 1| - 20,169
Repayment of nan-current bank {8 5 JE Bl B 2R 4T
borrowings & B {4,278) {19,976)
Repayment of long-term payable BEEIEATE
to Vedan Enterprise Corporation B ERSE
{“Taiwan Vedan") (a8 %A1)2
EHEMRE (2,145) (2,145)
Met cash used in financing activities BEEEIRTA 2
I8 4 W am (10,876) (6,448)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HEREHATEEY
cash equivalents (W) BE 9,456 (5,544)
Cash and cash equivalents BRENzZEEREERE
at beginning of year FH{E % 13 34,536 39,614
Exchange gains on cash and HDehkBEe&ED
cash equivalents g 1,526 466
Cash and cash equivalents REFRZAER
at end of year REZHEY 13 45,518 34,536

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
B ESEISAMMENERESMBERERN — 80
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including maodified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate ("MSG"), soda,
acid and beverages. The products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and manufacturers of food,
paper, textiles, and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN
member countries, the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"),
Japan, Taiwan, and several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, George Town PO. Box
2681 GT, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$"), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 20 March 2012.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis and the principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have heen consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"). The consclidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

—HmEH

BRAHEPE () ARAR ([E2F 1) R
HMREA (B (MDD EERHSE
EEEERARTNE ELEARKER
BMIHER (BFRECIERY BEEERE.
BRAE - BRIT R EEAE ) AR SRHE - ERTDIHE
frtuE-AMmFEEREER FEARH
FE(TPE]) - BE-aEESEERER
FHEMOHA BREZLA LEER
AR IEREER-

TRAlARRASEEEMRIzERA
Al EE A& Century Yard,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, George
Town P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman,
British West Indies =

FRREREEMEXEMARRRE
Ersfire

BRATIAN LEFERBERUET

(IEZmI)ME- EFFEHBRER T
——_FC-A_THEREEEHESMA-

RUEERTENHBREER

EHESEEMBEEARACEERTE
BHBRENNDOT -BEHIIAN - EF

HECERBERAMFEEHERE-
21 REEE
EHEMNFEMERERDNIEESE

MBREER([EEMBHRES
Al mRE-meMBEREDER
P b R A8 B T

mEFE T A WG LRI MRS
HERmEERETEEMN G L -
MEEEERAS RN s @tEH
BEPIFEELAEN - B REEH
B A e R 3 B R
EMBHRFLEXNRENGEN
S - 7Bt SEATh R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

]

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
fa)  Revised standard adopted by the Group
The following revised standard is mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1 January
2011,

HEKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

The Group adopted the above revised standard
which impacts the disclosures of the consolidated
financial statements.

fb) The following standards, interpretations and
amendments/revisions to standards are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year beginning 1
January 2011, but do not have significant financial
impact to the Group.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
{Amendment)

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of

International Financial
Reporting Standards

HKFRS 3 Business Comnbinations

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity

Instruments
Amendment to Limited Exemption from
HKFRS 1 Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters
Amendment to Prepayments of a Minimum

HE{IFRIC) = Int 14 Funding Requirement

56 vedan International (Holdings) Limited RS EME(ERIFRELT

HUBERIEOHBREE (W)

2.1

EEE(H)

(a)

(b
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEeMBHERME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 ENEERTENHBWEE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
The following new standards and amendments/
revisions to standards have been issued, but are

(c)

not mandatory for the financial year beginning 1
January 2011 and have not been early adopted.

2.1 RBLEE ()
(c) LATAEHEMEEIESFH=
2——H—F—HHEEZHE
FERM BMERNRERE
FrER| R ZERTE E

i
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTFEHE 2%
MmzastEEEN
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 July 2012
HHESFREAE1M (1B5TF) 2PHBEE —¥—_#F£+HA—H
HKAS 12 {(Amendment) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012
Fi8 @ EHERIZ 125 BERE: KEEEEE S
(fEaT &)

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013

HE G ERE 1950 B & @EF —¥—=f£—H—H
(fEaT &)

HKAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013

TFE @R AFE275 BuMBEE —¥—=%¥—f1—H
(4E1EET)

HKAS 28 (Revised) Associates and Joint Venturas 1 January 2013

TFE @A E2850 BRELARGELA —T—=%—A—AH
(4E1EET)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of 1 July 2011

T A S R SR
(12T H)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

T B RS R FE T
(13T %)

HKFRS 9

T A RS R o

HKFRS 10

G B S R 108

HKFRS 11

HAEMBEHREENE 118

HEKFRS 12

TG I R AR 51258

Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
BRESERERERIREREREZEEASE —T——%tH—H

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets 1 July 2011

HE - SEHHEE —®——%+HA—8
Financial Instruments 1 January 2015
£HIA —®-n%5—A—8
Consclidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
FEMBEEE —¥—=F—H—H
loint Arrangements 1 January 2013
CES —e-—=#-A-8
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
BEREGHWEB i =R —=fF—H_—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUEERIENHBRESE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RSB (8)
fc) The following new standards and amendments/ 0 BTARAEEMETIESEHRT
revisions to standards have been issued, but are E-——E—fA—HRAEHE
not mandatory for the financial year beginning 1 FEEH BEMEBERAIEMAZ
January 2011 and have not been early adopted. B RREAZERE B
{continued) Bl= ()
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
HRTHHEER2&
Mz ast HEER
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements 1 January 2013
EER T E EBIE 135 REEEE =F—=F—H—H
HKFRS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosure — 1 January 2014
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
= R S R 325 SHIA - BE-EHMKEERMEAR —T—NE—A—H
(HEFT &)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of 1 January 2013

a Surface Mine
E (B E e EXBELEREZFFERE
ERE)-REF20N

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above new
standards, amendments/revision to standards and
interpretations. The Group is not yet in a position
to state whether substantial changes to the Group's
accounting policies and financial statements
presentation will result.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC}
interpretations that are not yet effective that would
be expected to have a material impact on the
Group.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited WABEMN(ERIFELA

—g—=—A—E

25 5 W B B oA AT i B M st 3R
R R 2 EFT R HERT R
DR E TR BN RGEE
ERETCHEN - Gt EE
EMEEc 2N AAHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 ENEERTENHBWEE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 AR
2.2.1 Consolidation 22145

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights {'control’).
The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have maore
than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern
the financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances such as enhanced minarity rights or
contractual terms between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated. The
financial information of subsidiaries has been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

MEanErEEEH#ET
HEMBEEREREZ X
EB(EEEkENER) @&
EHEAGBEFEEEEZRG
(M#EEsl]) -RTEEEEET
FHE -8R -2ERRE
AlfTESER B g
FEEFE -8 FEBATHE
DT E50% EEEEEG
EmrEERMB RS ERE
B Hr g eSFEEE
fE - WRR I D B
FIE N AR R M AT B & #ER
HFEATHER-

Ml ARENESETE
MY HEZEES AR T
PAIEGIE 2 1 & BR IHERE A
i -

EMA LA L ElEZ S RS
BHEDHH - SRR EME
EWHREATERZ R IR
B ¥ i o [t 42 9 7 Bt 35 &
BEE{FHBEZT LR
&4 SR B

Annual Report 2011 £ 8§

59

gl 2
P,
=1



60

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation {continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
contralling interest's proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree's
identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the aggregate of the
consideration and any non-controlling interest
is lower than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited WABEMN(ERIFELA

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses an disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subseguently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), joint
venture or financial asset {Note 2.10). In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company

on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's

net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill

identified on acguisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss

where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income staterent, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive cbligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors collectively.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

fa)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and gualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within 'finance
costs — net’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other losses — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment is
calculated using the straight-line methed to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Properties 20-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
- Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment and

other fixed assets 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverahle amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within 'other losses — net', in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Mo depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 ENEERTENHBWEE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets 27 EREE
(a) Goodwill (a) B

(b

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents

AR WML B
AREECRBESL FED

the excess of the consideration transferred over T 1 {8 5 ) A 5 ) el A B
the Group's interest in net fair value of the net AR EEFME -AE R
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent AEEOFHs#EEEREY

liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill

fBH 2 It it 2 F 1 2 B
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acquired in a business combination is allocated to PUE-ERDSEERER
each of the cash-generating units ("CGUs"), or HREHHBRAEr EREE
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from HSEN([REELERN])®

the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Trademarks, brand name and licence

Separately acquired trademarks, brand name and
licence, which have finite useful life are carried at
cost less accurmnulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks,
brand name and licence over their estimated useful
lives of 6 to 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)

fe)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licence are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Non-current assets held for sale

Mon-current assets are classified as assets held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell and a sale is considered highly probably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 ENEERTENHBWEE (M)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.10 Financial assets 210 MBEE
2.10.1 Classification 2101 748

The Group classifies its financial assets as the loans
and receivables. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for amounts that
are settled or expected to be settled more than 12
maonths after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's
loans and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables (Note 2.12), cash and cash equivalents
(Note 2.13), amount due from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, loan to a subsidiary and
amounts due from subsidiaries in the balance sheet.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date - the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Loans and receivables are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.3 Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a lean has a wvariable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument's fair value using an
observable market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUEBERTEOHBWEE (W)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

210 MiIFEEE (@)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.3 Impairment (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.

2103 55 (4F)
mEREHRBABREES
B e <L 7 e oL P e B

can be related chjectively to an event occurring EHEEHEEEE2EE (H
after the impairment was recognised {(such as an mMEFAZERAERE Ak
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the E) BzRIEHEAEREE
reversal of the previously recognised impairment HepE e s A EE -
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
2.1 Inventories 211 &8
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FHEAMR A 2R EHMAE NS
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted & AR - i E e FE £ HE -
average method. The cost of finished goods and work- PR aTMERERREREREME B
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expensas.
Spare parts and consumables are included within THREHEAEDTATES EENE
inventories and stated at cost, using the weighted TG E AR AT AR -
average method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consoclidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16

2.17

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax i1s also recognised in other comprehensive
incorme or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company's subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

o)

Defarred income tax

(i)

(i)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited WABEMN(ERIFELA

2

HUBERIEOHBREE (W)

217 EERIEE TS (8)
E FE AT 2

b)

(i)

EEZREA

RSB R AR EE
HWRERARZBRER
RuEGREMBERCE
AlMmE - ERTERE
BB o PR - fiel M EE B OR
AEDREAEENIE
ZRTEHEARZEL
IR B 8 - W e O AE A
GERDREETXZ SR
SRS HERBE
FlEERz EERAR
ZNERR (AEKS
e 2% 8 )  RIT &
st ARIEFT R HH o T
FigRARBEBNE
EEAEFERER
E(EHEBE - THE
MR E R F A
ERBHEERRGHE
EAEEEER -

WMEFTEHEEEMRSE
A BE #% 7 HE B B B
HAa# Az EEEZEH
B T AT -

EAEE R BN

i FE B 15 B 75 it B 1
BIERBELAHREESE
ZERERMmEE
fie] s e ) ] LA 2 o] By
EE BEREIER
AREERER AT T &
7 120 BRIl Bk 5 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

EREERTENHBREEE (K)

217 EMREBEFEH (M)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c) Offsetting ic) ##E
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset MIEFFSHEERRBEEES
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset ETEZEFIHRESHEEE
current tax assets against current tax liabilities HENEHERETEERE B
and when the deferred income taxes assets and MEFMSHEEERBEDER
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same B [B] — FH A48 Bl (] [|) — PE R
taxation authority on either the taxable entity ar HEGTRERT TSN Z
different taxable entities where there is an intention i ARESEEERIER
to settle the balances on a net basis. &5 0] B RIEE -

2.18 Employee benefits 218 EEEF

(a)  Pension obligations (a) EHEHE
The Group participates in a number of defined AR EEER RS
contribution plans, the assets of which are generally Bl HEE-—MaBIETER
held in independently administered funds. The EFE - A EMEEEBEER
Group's contributions to the defined contribution EEHME R EEEEH-
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

(b} Termination benefits (b)) EEEER
Termination benefits are payable when employment EEEMIEERERREREH
is terminated by the Group before the normal BIEIFHERA SEERRE
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts FEREMLBEDNFEEER
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these B 2 AR TSR BN E S 0+ -
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits FEMEAFERAAEFEILIER

when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18

2.19

Employee benefits (continued)

fe)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d}  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability, if any, is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

EREERTENHBREEE (K)

220 BEWHEEHEM A

2.20 Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The

Wi o Mot el R 2 & Tl
B -raRtfamzERRNE 7®
Ak EERBETEES M-
Wik & ERAC I SEMLIETE - RIEEEF
@A AERARHER UERETX
Ff sif 2 B [0 30 5 2 5 O M A B - R
W M A - KRR RA B R
AGTHOE TREEEFEHER -

Group bases its estimates of return on histarical results, ZEBAEEETH ABER-.

taking into consideration the type of customer, the type

of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

{a) Sales of goods (a) HERW
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group EmEERARFEEEERD
entity has delivered products to the customer, the HEERTEF EFEER
customer has accepted the products and has full EmEmrAEHHEERAN

discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

(b} Sales of surplus electricity
Sales of surplus electricity are recognised based on

REMEERNDEE - BRA
FETEANZERPERE

i) HEERHESD
HERSENMSREERE

units of electricity sold as recorded by meters during AN EEEUERA
the year. A -
{c)  Interest income (c) FL.EWA

Interest income is recognised on a time-propaortion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the ariginal effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and

FILEMARBERF S EREE
fii] b ] 5 208 3 77 8 3T - 1 B BN
B FE A R B TR LM AR
ENEEHREREERER
TARBERMRZGFHTH
REREMAE A WE R
B OrHEERRTEESTE
W A= g (M B TR R B LB T2

receivables is recognised using the original effective FlLB M A T3 B TR BB R R B
interest rate. e

(d}  Dividend income (o) AE.E A
Dividend inceme is recognised when the right to EHECBREESFERE  BE
receive payment is established. W AT LATERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessar) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividend proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liguidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess
liquidity.

(a)l  Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Vietnam Dong against US$. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations.
The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange risk.

At 31 December 2011, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit (2010: loss) for the year would
have been US$685,000 (2010: US$937,000)
lower/higher (2010: higher/lower), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b}

Market risk {continued)
{iiy  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash
flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2011, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit (2010: loss) for the year would
have been US5$%138,000 (2010: US$149,000)
lower/higher (2010: higher/lower), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, amount due from the
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b}

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables included in the consolidated balance
sheets represents the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputation. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 13 are held
in rajor financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the amount
due from the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
is neither past due nor impaired. Given that all the
balance is within credit period, management are of
opinion that the receivable from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary is of low credit risk.

Mo impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

Liguidlity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
reguirements.

Management maonitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
(Mote 13) on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1
The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's

HERLRER (&)

it 35 mL B B % ()

THEBEEERESHBIEHE &
THREEEEEXRRZHBER
B mERED AR TSI - Rk
RAEBEBEsEERAGSHNRTERS

financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. FH--
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—5A -F$E@E WEELE HERF &t
Uss 000 1JS3'000 Us$'000 JS$'000 1JS5°000
FEn FER FER TEn TE=r
Group TEN
At 31 December 2011 RZ-F——%+-A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note) #R{T{8 5 ( §3) 24,046 494 16,264 = 40,804
Trade payables i £ B & BR R 23,817 - - 23,817
Other payables H o 8 3R 12,846 - - 12,846
Due to related parties Mt HEEA L HH 2,399 - - 2,399
At 31 December 2010 RZ-F-FF+-A=+—8
Bank borrowings (Mote) R {T{& B ( HiiE) 24,852 606 21,412 46,870
Trade payables f {1 B 5 B 3 26,030 - - 26,030
Long-term payable to ~ BHEEEA L7 &M
a related party 2,145 2,166 - - 4,311
Other payables H o 8 3R 19,847 - - - 19,847
Due to related parties Mt HEEA L HH 323 - - = 323
Company ELH
At 31 December 2011 R_E——%+_A=+-8
Bank borrowings (Mote) R T8 B ( §i3E) 6,039 - - - 6,039
Due to related parties M+ HBEEA LT EE 2,399 = = - 2,399
At 31 December 2010 RH-F—-FF+-A=+-8H
Bank borrowings (Note) {785 ( #5) 9,495 - - - 9,495
Long-term payable to A HEEA L7 & MR
a related party 2,145 2,166 - - 4,311
Note: B -

THEHRBEERESHBARRKRITER
{2 ] B -

The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings up to

their respective maturities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
manitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
equity holders’ equity as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. Total borrowings include non-current
borrowings and current borrowings.

During 2011, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2010, was to maintain a minimal gearing ratio. The
gearing ratios at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as

HERERERE(H)
3.2 EFXEmER

FHREMEERS AEARELSE
EAEEEUNEERERE RN B
AERTERCEERRERAASE
R ARSI EEZ TR
o L B AR A

ATHRESBERRGE KRBT
EERABRT TREZREEHE MK
HFEERE BOHRORLERE
oA e 1 % =

BEARMLA—# KEHETE
AR EERERRE - ZHL R
AHEAREFR T ZRBRITEER
AR At H - BEERRE
FEBEEERHER-

Ro-F——F FEMHBER_T
—~TEMEMEEE B DS
ERFAEERREKRE -R_F-

follows: Ep_B—fi+_A=1+t—He~
EEAEBEEENT:
Group
FEE
2011 2010
uss'000 Us$'000
FER FERT
Total bank borrowings (Note 17) mEBTEE (HfE17) 38,073 43,134
EEAZELE
Owners' equity {including (BE7AEES
non-controlling interest in equity) eI 271,621 266,176
Total capital EXimE 309,694 309,310
Gearing ratio HERAMBEL® 12% 14%

Management considers that the current gearing ratio is
reasonable.

EEERARREEAGLEES
Ei?
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GEMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

3.4

3

HERLRER (&)

Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEHEMEH
The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade ERMENESERTEHMENTE
and other receivables and trade and other payables are LLEEMESEDREEtESE
assumed to approximate their fair values because of JBE 55 B MR 7 o 1 RS o AR T
their short maturities. The fair value of financial assets M ERERL EEES - HEEm
and liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by ELMEEERRAB s OTM g
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the FEMRAEsRIARBOTIETR
current market interest rate that is available to the Group BRFEREEHBRETEEMGE -
for similar financial instruments.
Financial instruments by category - Group and 3. BRSNS ZHMEBEIE-FEER
Company AT
The accounting policies fer financial instruments have ERMATESHERERMBEIAS
been applied to the line items below: e EE
2011 2010
uss‘000 Us§'000
xR FET
Group 5 W
Loans and receivables EREERRE
Long-term loan and receivables EEHEFEENRIE 329 -
Trade receivables FE U B 5 AR 35 32,714 40,328
Amounts due from non-controlling i i I8 2 R FE TR A
interest of a subsidiary EHm 2B 1,431 1,308
Other receivables H it U BA 7,180 4,873
Cash and cash equivalents BeEREFED 45,518 34,536
87,172 81,045
2011 2010
uss'000 uUs$'ooo
FTED TEn
Group W
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IREHEREHH 2
A
Long-term payable to Ed—28EEALTY
a related party EEIEE - 2,074
Trade payables FE - & 2 B R 23,817 26,030
Other payables Hib e FIE 12,374 19,803
Due to related parties FEfHHREALTIE 2,399 2,280
Bank borrowings BITIEE 38,073 43,134
76,663 93,321

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited WA EER(ERIFRLE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEBHmRME
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MEEREER (#)
3.4 Financial instruments by category - Group and 3. EERST o HMBEIE-FEER
Company (continued) 0T (M)
2011 2010
Us$'000 us$'oo0
FE=R =T
Company HLF
Loans and receivables B R e IE
Long-term loan to a subsidiary =) i B8 2 Bl HE = B B 3 13,200 10,500
Due from subsidiaries FE L7 B 1 2 BB IE 50,146 50,809
Other receivables H o pE W 58 19 10
Cash and cash equivalents BH&EEEEEWD 723 1,151
64,088 62,470
2011 2010
Us$'000 Us$'000
FE=R &
Company b |
Financial liabilities at amortised cost EEE R A 2 B TS B R
Long-term payable to a related party FEH—ZHMEALTZ
EHNE - 2,074
Other payables H o FE A TR 1S 1,580 1,272
Due to related parties FE SRE A TS 2,399 2,280
Bank borrowings HITEE 5,850 9,288
9,829 14,914
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GEMBRRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within

the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in MNote 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note B).

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and non-indefinite life intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment (Mote 7) and non-
indefinite life intangible assets (Note 8) are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

The recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment is determined based on wvalue-in-use
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. These
calculations and valuations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited WABEMN(ERIFELA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EERHMGHERE (#)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and (b) V¥ BERRNHNEAREFHER
equipment and non-indefinite life intangible assets B A R ()
(continued)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations RUGtEEREMN s T2 /HEBNT -
are as follows.
Vietnam The PRC
HE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Selling price growth rate EEEES 4% - 44% 8% - 30% 3% - 10% 8% - 19%
Discount rate AL T 52 11.5% 11.5% 12.5% 12.5%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of
each CGU within the operating segment.

An impairment charge of US%4,005,000 {2010:
US$2,055,000) on property, plant and equipment
in Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd.
("Shandong Vedan Snowflake”) during the course of
the 2011 year, resulting in the carrying amount of the
property, plant and eguipment being written down to its
recoverable amount. The low recoverable amount mainly
represented the continuous loss making of Shandong
Vedan Snowflake and to confront the Group's latest
business plan in the PRC.

If the budgeted selling price growth rate used in the
value-in-use calculation for the property, plant and
equipment in Shandong Vedan Snowflake had been 2%
lower than management’s estimates at 31 December
2011 (for example, 1% instead of 3%), with all other
variables held constant, the Group would have recognised
a further impairment of property, plant and equipment by
U5%1,500,000.

SHEESHEASHROA T EE
ERAARERSR-

R-R——F UEEASEEES
Boal ([UEFRSERE]) Z80%-
Wi 5B 2 8t M ¥ H 44,005,0003%
gL (= —=£ :2,055,000%7T)
W - B R RRE R
FEAENEE-ACEETEE
ERMIUEEASESERR LK
MerEms ST EE#HTE -

WA HILERASERX -BEES
MERABHEAERTEEEEE
EEREHRER_-_F——F+=A
=t+—BfELzE&E2% (-
BE®51%Mm3E3% ) - MATE i
SRS T R B A M AR
DEE - BB B2 i #{E1,500,000

ETTe
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e MBRRME

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group's management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets by reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will adjust
the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives vary from previously estimates. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefare
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the waorldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited WABEMN(ERIFELA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBWRME

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Board of Directors collectively. The Directors review the
Group's internal reporting in order to assess perfermance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that
are used to make strategic decisions. These reports include
segment revenue, segment assets and capital expenditures.

The chief operating decision-makers consider the business
from a geographical aspect. In presenting information on the
basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based on
the geographical presence of customers. Segment assets and
capital expenditures are based on the geographical location of
the assets.

The chief operating decision makers mainly assess the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment. Accordingly, the segment performance is restricted to
revenue information.

In 2011 and 2010, the revenue from the Group's largest
custamer amounted to less than 10 per cent of the Group's
total revenue.

SHBAEAH

FEREREECREATEREREM
R-EFFUNLRMAEESE LT
FEESERR-FERRRLEREHE
ERESE-

FREERBTELREAREAFNALMRA
BlERMARAE HEEERBES M- It
FHEARSHEE SBRERAER
=-|_|_|D

TERERARENMERE ST RER-
L2ESAE2HAHE SRHRNENER
FEDRE 7 SHRERREI DAL
HEMEE 5 -

TEEEARETERESNESAME
2 WHEHERIE - HIE 5 BREER
STEELoE

R-F——HR_F—BF RALERN
BAEPZUHSGETRMEHEAE LR
10% =
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SR RRME

(i

(ii)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SHEH(W)

Segment revenue () SEHk=
2011 2010
uss‘o00 Us$'000
FET T
Vietnam il 180,624 170,003
The PRC HR 46,779 51,790
Japan H 2 86,039 66,429
Taiwan &8 6,909 5,781

ASEAN member countries HEMRRE

{other than Vietnam) (TEiE#HE) 36,310 25,975
Other regions Hih#h [E 26,239 16,129
382,900 336,107

Capital expenditures (i) #EFxFH
2011 2010
uss'o00 UsS$'000
FET FET
Vietnam it B 8,961 16,794
The PRC R 1,758 1,641
10,719 18,435

Capital expenditures are allocated based on where the

assets are |ocated.

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant

and equipment, intangible assets and land use rights.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited WA EER(ERIFRLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMEHRRHET
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEHBEHE(ER)
(iii) Total assets (iii) A&EE
2011 2010
uss'000 Us$'000
FER FET
Vietnam it B 287,765 300,089
The PRC & [ 69,548 67,905
Hong Kong & 3,133 2,032
Taiwan R 859 785
Singapore T On 62 65
361,367 370,876

BEENREBREMERMSME-

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are
located.

Wk BERREHEERMNEED
HEmEE-LTRIEREEE

Property, plant and equipments are monitored by the
management at the operating segment level. The

fallowing is a summary of amortisation, depreciation SEEIEREEE (e -7R8)#
H-ERAERE-

and impairment of non-current assets (Notes 6, 7 and 8)
allocation for each operating segment.

Amortisation

and
depreciation Impairment
BaRTE {8
uUs$'000 uss'ooo
FTER FER
2011 —E——F
\ietnam e 22,171 250
The PRC [ 2,976 4,005
25,147 4,255
Amortisation
and
depreciation Impairment
HWHEiTE 3, 18
US$'000 Us$'ooo
FE £
2010 —
Vietnam e 24,106 -
The PRC 5 & 3,086 2,055
27,192 2,055
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GEMBRRME

LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values are

analysed as follows:

T {E A

THEEpRTHERE EREERENE
EHER HEREMHSHOT

2011 2010
uss'000 Us$'000
TET FERL
Outside Hong Kong, held on EEBLMNEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +EER+EZHAN 2,200 654
2011 2010
uss’000 Us$'000
FTEx FET

At 1 January m—HA—H 654 6,472

Exchange differences EHEHE 36 196

Additions 7 B - 1,502

Amortisation of land use rights + i {8 P B 6E

(Notes 5 and 21) (KT aEsR21) (64) (86)

Transfer from/(to) non-current assets BES. S (ZIHELE

held for sale (Note ii) I E R E (Makii) 1,574 (7,430)

At 31 December Ht—_A=+—H 2,200 654

MNotes: B &

(i) In respect of the Group's land use rights, Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) (i} S L EREmMS - RPER
Co. Ltd ("Xiamen Maotai"), Shandong Vedan Snowflake VEERs-HEOREERS (MA)A
and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd ("Shanghai Vedan"}, Bad(IEMMEE]) - LERAZSEER
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have been FERATEENRAR ([ EEHALIE
granted rights to use the land by the relevant authority for 50 BHAMEEETEHATFN T HER
years, which expire in 2042, 2056 and 2060 respectively. BoRR RN =—F - —FRSFRE=

THREFER-
(il In September 2010, Shanghai Vedan entered into an agreement iy WBR-ZR-—RFLA LERAEBIE=

with an independent third party for sales of certain land use
rights and property, plant and equipment (the “Agreement”). At
31 December 2010, the related assets had been reclassified as

non-current assets held for sale.

In August 2011, a supplementary agreement to the Agreement
was entered into by both parties to agree that a piece of land
with carrying value of US%1,574,000 would be retained by
Shanghai Vedan and accordingly this land was transferred back to

land use rights in current year.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited WA EER(ERIFRLE

HElVNBALEE T LIeERELED
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GEMBHRRME

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 V- -BEREMN
Difice
equipment
and other
fixed assets
Construction- Plant and Motor HLOTHE
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles Total
ERIE % RERRXR AE &t
USD'000 UsD 000 UsD 000 UsD' 600 UsSD'000
TR TET TET TERL 27
At 1 January 2010 R-%-%%¥-A-H
Cost & 12,133 101,228 EYRRE 8,706 31,772 531,552
Accumulated depreciation Bith i (44,581) {257 480) (6,790} 27,537} (336,388)
Accumulated impairment B HE (1,064) 14,501} . (22} (5,587)
Met book amount BEEF 12,133 55,583 115,732 1,916 4213 189,577
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE-%-%F
TZRAE=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FYEEFE 12,133 55,583 115,732 1,916 42113 189,577
Exchanage differences BEREE - 352 566 26 14 358
Additions FE 15,202 - 1,168 243 189 16,202
Transfer L | (20,637) 5,050 15,446 141 -
Dispasals firk- (700 491y (107} (6E8)
Depreciation {Notes 5 and 21) ik {5,055) [19,234) 1443) (878} {25,616)
Impairment |oss (Notes 4, 5 and 21) HEE [498) (1,557} (2,055)
Transfer to nan-current assets '
held for sale (Note &) 14,985) (4,985)
Closing net book amount FHEEFE B,G38 50,377 111,630 1,736 3,572 174,013
At 31 December 2010 H-%-%F+=A=1+-8
Cost ¥ B,G3E 102,547 402 442 2,840 31,523 552,059
Accumulated depreciation SH#R (50,608} (284, 754) (7,113} {27,929} (370,404)
Accumulated impairment (1,562) (6,058) - 22} (7 642)
Met book amount EEFHE E,6%8 50,377 111,630 1,736 1572 174,013
Year ended 31 December 2011 RE=-8—-F
TZA=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount FHEEFE 6,638 50,377 111,630 1,736 1572 174,013
Exchange differences EXEE 168 o3t ] 1,108
Additions TE 854 28 1,133 370 284 10,713
Transfer Ha {10,430) 3,034 7,335 - A1
Disposals firk - {1 {381} (14} (48} (442)
Depraciation {Motes 5 and 21) Eid ] (50005 (17,232) {500} (364} (23,586)
Impairment loss (Notes 4, 5 and 21) HE (1,166} (3,089) (4,255)
Closing net book amount FHREESE 5122 47 440 100,377 1,601 3,007 157,547
At 31 December 2011 R=-®-——-%+=A=+-H
Cost i 5122 104,144 405,331 8,687 31,378 554,662
Accumulated depreciation Bith® - {53,976} (295,807) (7,086} (28,349} (385,218)
Accumulated impairment BEHHE {2,728) 13,147} 22} (11,887)
et book amount BEEFHE 5122 47 440 100,377 1,601 3,007 157,547
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SR RRME

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 Yk -EERGWN (&)
Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group is pledged FTEMUETYDE BERSHEER.
as security for the Group’s current and non-current bank LAER{S A M g BN ER B FJEEPERERTTIE B 1
borrowings as follows: +:
2011 2010
uss‘000 uss$'o000
TET FET
MNet book amount of pledged property, BiEFDE - BERRMH
plant and equipment (Note 35) AR % (I (M 5E35) 21,104 22,715
Depreciation expense of US$19,485,000 (2010:; IT# 19,485,000 T ( B — 2 :
US$21,691,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$46,000 21,691,000 ) *46,000E T (S —F
(2010: US%$49,000) in selling and distribution expenses iF : 49,0003 7T ) #04,065,000E L ( = =
and US$4,065,000 (2010: US$3,876,000) in administrative T ;3,876,000 ) B HE A A
expenses. HERSEAELETEBE P HE-
8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 WEWE
Group Company
LEm S|
Software
Goodwill and licence  Brand name  Trademarks Total  Trademarks
HE RELRRR N il 8% #h
uss'ooo Uss'000 Uss‘o00 Uss° 000 Uss oo Us5°000
TER TEx T FET FET E
At 1 January 2010 R=%-%E-3-8
Cost i 3317 1,511 1,142 12,088 23 059 12,089
Accumulated amortisation PRI EE {158} (424) (456) {5,843) {6,881} (5,843)
Net book amount BHASE 4,159 1,087 68A 6,246 16,178 6,246
Year ended 31 December 2010
Opening net bock amount 8,159 1,087 6EG B,246 16,178 6,245
Exchange differances 230 230
Additions 131 11
Amortisation charge (Motes 5 and 21) (167] (114) 11,209) (1,430} (1,209)
Clesing net book amount 3,383 1,051 572 5,037 15,049 5,037
At 31 December 2010 R-B-BE+-A=+-8
Cost e 8,547 1,642 1,142 12,089 3420 12,089
Accumulated amortisation Ri#R 1158} {591) (570 {7,052 (8,371) (7,052)
Met book amount BEF{E 3,389 1,051 572 5,037 15,049 5,037
Year ended 31 December 2011
Opening net book amount 4,389 1,051 572 5,037 15,0449 5,037
Exchange differences 391 391
Amortisation charge (Motes 5 and 21)  # @B % (FESEN (164) (114) 11,209) (1,487) (1,208)
Closing nat book amount FREETFE 8,780 287 458 3,828 13,953 3,828
At 31 December 2011 R-%--%+-3=+-H
Cost i 3,938 1,642 1,142 12,089 23811 12,085
Accumulated amortisation RERE {158} (755) [:24] {8,261) 19,B5E) (8,261)
Met book amount FEFE 4,780 a7 453 3,828 13,853 3,828

Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses.
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HREMBWRME

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) MEWEE (H)
Impairment tests for goodwill: R R
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's CGUs identified according TEMAESFESS EAARNZEBDRE
to operating segment. SEUSIEE-
The PRC Vietnam
T H M
MSG MSG
packaging packaging Total
LB g bf g &t
Us$'000 Uss$'000 us$'oo0
FET FETT FEIT
At 31 December 2011 E=R——F i =H=F—H 8,050 730 8,780
At 31 December 2010 BR_2—RE+_A=+—H 7,659 730 8,389

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the MSG
packaging in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

RN IR & EE i 7 A Ui (o] 6 BB T 4 (0 R (6 1
AE-ESHHERTERIEL AFHM
B TE B P B B AT 2 & R B A 7T - 1B
HWAFEHzRERBERNATE5 2 G5
BMEEHE (MER) - 8 &7 & &5
REEfMEEsKERXMENTHR
R&o

RUAHERBH 2 TERRDOT -

follows.

2011 2010
Gross margin £ Fi & 1B.1% - 21.2%  16.0% - 22.9%
Growth rate 185 &= 1% 1%
Discount rate PR 12.5% 12.5%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of
goodwill are based would not cause the carrying amounts to
exceed the recoverable amounts.

ZERAARSHEESEASRDRSE
Efie

EEENERATEERAYTEERS
EHMmMEEREERE -FAHEE I
AIRAIRE - W RELAMER S 2 BER
B -

IR RS - R B W AR R A
TERRAEMSETRZET TSR
T 1 6 3 L T M )
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GEMBRRME

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9 PHELE<HE"T B TFT—RBEL
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE FlzREERBEEGMEBLFHE -
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY * &7

2011 2010

uss‘o00 Us$'000

FET =

Unlisted shares FELTRER 165,241 170,390
At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the long-term loan granted to R-ZP——ERE-T-—ZTF+-A=+

a subsidiary is unsecured, denominated in US$ and repayable
on 31 July 2013 and carries an interest at three-month SIBOR.
The carrying value of loan to a subsidiary approximates its fair
value.

In 2011, included in amounts due from subsidiaries, short-
term US$ dominated loan of US$5,571,000 to a subsidiary was
unsecured and repayable on 31 December 2012 and carried an
interest at three-month SIBOR (2010: unsecured, interest-free,
denominated in US$ and repayable on 31 March 2011). Other
amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free,
denominated in US$ and repayable on demand.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2011:

B-B#T-HiBanzEHERDE
ER-LETAERER_F—=F+tA
=+—BHEE TE=_EARNHERTE
EREGFR-ET HHBLOAERZE
EfHBEE L FHES -

i, S oI BRI FRES
5,571,000z SHETERN A EER -
BER-_F——-—F+-_HA=1+—HEE- ¥
E=EAFMERTAREFEFE(=F
T IR B8 - BT RER
—FT——H="A=1—HEE) mMEK
MBLAlzHMAERASEER -£2 U
SaAtli-wEAEEkHEE-

TrHAR_——&+_A=t+—Hz=x
Efmoa:

Particulars of

Place of issued/paid up
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name establishment place of operation BRT H2 held
28 A MUkl TEEHREEHEH BAE BEMEE
Directly held:
EENE:
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%
("BVI") EERGRER of USS1 each
AMELEE 1004% &l E (K
([EMELER]) (EFHiok il
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BYI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%
EHETHE EEEHEER of US$1 each
100/ & % B
Sk Fil
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S BWMRME
9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9 PHELFAZE#R -GEF—FHMEL
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE FIZRNRZJBRBHRMELFRE -
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued) ELF (M)
Particulars of
Place of issued/paid up
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name establishment place of operation BT /BE held
8 HEAY Bt TEXREREESE BRasfE FERG
Indirectly hela:
BIEwRE:
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore 5$106,067,921 100%
s FE 3 A0 42 5 PR AR Ordinary shares
106,067,921
T 0 4 R
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore 5§34,344,929 100%
s TE 57 04 1 PR Ordinary shares
34,944 929
B 0 4 S
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacture and sale of 131,970,000 100%
Corporation Limited WE fermentation-based food Ordinary shares of
A (#A ) A AR 2 Al additives and biochemical US§1 each
products and cassava starch- 131,970,000
based industrial products FREM1=T
including MSG, GA, modified B 3 A A
starch, glucose syrup, soda and
acid in Vietnam and for export
FEMEEERHEREREST A
ELERRAEBMIRES
BEEE  fEE - IER-
AEER-HITRERTHESA
Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. PRC Packaging and sale of MSG, starch ~ US$20,270,000 100%
BEEm(EMARLHE & E# and beverages in the PRC Registered capital
ErEOREHEHE BHESRH  20,270,000% 7T
FitE %
Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Packaging and sale of MS5G 1,838,282 100%
e in Vietnam Ordinary shares of
AR RHERE US§1 each
1,838,282/ F it
Effi1=Tm
gl
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GEMBRRME

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

EHBLFAZRA BT —FHMEL
Bl Z 5 M 5 o R TR B B 2 B Bk R —
ELF (M)

Particulars of

Place of issued/paid up
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name establishment place of operation BRI MR held
8 HREL RuUgy TEXEREESH RAEFHE HE#ED
Indirectly held: (continued)
FEEHE (&)
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC Manufacture and sale of MSG UsS$17,200,000 70%
Enterprise Ca., Ltd. =l in the PRC Registered capital
WEEASEERERLA EFRTERAERR 17,200,000% 7T
+E M 5 2
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. PRC Packaging and sale of MSG Us$9,800,000 100%
Ltd. FH in the PRC Registered capital
LERALRERAA ErHRGXRAERR 9,800,000% 7T
o fift & &
Veyu Enterprise Co., Ltd. Vietnam Manufacture and sale of cassava 2,200,000 100%
HE starch-based industrial products Ordinary shares of
in Vietnam and for export USH1 each
EHEEEREEREENIE 2,300,000/ 8K
EREHELA E{l1=TH
3 ik
Xiamen Darong Import & Export  PRC Trading of cassava starch-based US$254,000 100%
Trade Co., Ltd. +H industrial products in the PRC Registered capital
EMABELOERERAA EPEEHAEBRNIRER 254, 000& T
o fift # 2
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G RMBRRMEE

10

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND

COMPANY

10

R—HBELRZRAE-FTEAERS

2

2011 2010

uss'000 Us$'000

F %G EEE

Unlisted shares, at cost e F s fr (EEAER) 1,230 1,230

Movement on the investment in an associate is as follows:

=

BRoRBERA 7 REEEHSHMT

Group Company
FEME F. 03|
2011 2010 2011 2010
uss‘000 Us$'000 uss'o00 Uss'000
FETT sz FET s
At 1 January s 1,230 - 1,230 =
Additions e - 1,230 - 1,230
Share of post-tax loss of E {f — B B &% 2 3]
an associate BHiEEA (222) = = =
At 31 December W B = 1,008 1,230 1,230 1,230

The Group's share of the results of the associate and its assets

FEBEEHREQCAZIEENEREER

and liabilities are as follows: BREMET:
Country of Particulars of %
Name incorporation issued share capital interest held
&% # B R ERTRAFE HE#EES
Dacin International Holdings Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30
Limited HEEE Us$1 each

EREREEER QA

4,100,0000

e mEE1E T2 B
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SR RRME

10

11

12

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND 10
COMPANY (continued)

Summary of financial information on associate - effective

R—HABRELFAZEE-FEEES
ar ()

BELCT-MBERNE-NRES

interest

Share of
Assets Liabilities Revenue loss
HE K| W & FE {5 518
Us$'000 us$'000 Us$'000 uss$'o000
T & 7T FEx T2 7T =

At 31 December 2011 H-®——%+=H
=+—AH 1,008 - - (222)

At 31 Decernber 2010 R-F—Z%H5+—=AR
==z 1,230 - - -

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development
in Vietnam. As of 31 December 2011, the associate has naot
started any development project.

BELARUEIENEEHESR -H
E_R——F+_A=+—H -HELR
A IR B RIEE -

INVENTORIES 1 #®

2011 2010
uss'000 us$'000
FTED FET
Spare parts and consumables o e kT 3,500 4,350
Raw materials EREEs 47,177 46,914
Work in progress ERA 6,423 4,771
Finished goods Bk dn 38,238 27,158
95,338 83,193

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BAARAEIERFAHES T Ak

in cost of sales amounted to US$289,757,000 (2010:
us$241,547,000).

TRADE RECEIVABLES 12

The fair values of trade receivables are as follows:

&
& m289,757, 000 T (B — B
241,547,000 ) -

B Il 8 & IR =&
FEME SR 22 FHEOT:

Group
FIEE
2011 2010
uss'000 uUs$'000
xR FET
Trade receivables from third parties EBUWE=-FESERN 33,987 41,600
Trade receivables from a related party EWSkHEALTESES
(Note 34(d)) (i aE34(d)) 110 250
Less: provision for impairment of S ¢ FE W B B S (R
trade receivables (1,383) {1,522)
32,714 40,328
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GRE BT
12 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 12 BHREBES (#H)
The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on EEESERZEEHAESRERE 120
delivery to 120 days and the ageing of the trade receivables FMENESEEIESTEHBRZRRS
based on invoice date is as follows: HrEn T
Group
FEE
2011 2010
Us$'000 Us$'o0o00
FER FET
Current BN &5 21,400 27,666
31 - 80 days 31 290X 7,395 8,906
91 — 180 days 91 E 180X 2,444 2,959
181 — 365 days 181%365% 1,224 209
Owver 365 days 3657 F 1,634 ()
34,097 41,850
As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of US$27,025,000 B - = apessl =i H -
{2010: US$31,337,000) were fully performing. 27,025 000F LN ESRF (ZT—F
% 131,337,000 ) EH MR & -
As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of US$5,685,000 i — £+ _H=+—H 5685000
{2010: US$7,372,000) were past due but not impaired. These ET(ZR—TF 7372000 ET) 2 E
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is WHE BRI EAE A M SRS
no significant financial difficulty and based on past experience, HETUREAMBRSE - BIEFS
the overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing of those - EHBEER OEESE -2
past due but not impaired receivables is as follows: & B 248 9F A {2 FE W ph I8 2 AR A AT
T
Group
FEM
2011 2010
Us$'000 us$'oo0
FET FEx
Overdue by i Hy
Current to 90 days ENHRZ=90% 3,942 5,722
91 - 180 days 91 E 180X 1,681 1,636
Cver 180 days 180F B\ £ 62 14
5,685 7,372
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aa B R AR Y A

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of US$1,387,000
(2010: US$3,141,000) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was US$1,383,000 as of 31 December 2011 (2010:
US$1,522,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to prior customers, which are in unexpectedly difficult
economic situations. It was assessed that a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

12

BERBEER (&)

i *+_HA=1+—H ' &
SHEI1,387,000E (= —F
31 000FEL)E THME- B _-F
F+-_A=-+—HiEEMBEHRSLER
1,383,000 T ( — B — %4 :1,522,000
3= 7T ) = {iE Bl Bt (M A FE U 318 £ 3 B R
EIEFEERSENANESEH M5
EUWHRIEAF A AR T YO - ZEFE
WS ErRE S ITmT

B

75

Group

ES 4
2011 2010
uss5'000 Us$'000
TER FET

Overdue by i 5

91 — 180 days 91F180% = 1,626
181 - 365 days 181%E365% = =
Over 365 days 365K LA E 1,387 1,515
1,387 3,141

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

%5 0 2 5 R M T3
HHE

Group

HEE
2011 2010
uss'000 us$'000
FTED FET
Vietnam Daong HEE 20,363 24,732
us$ £ 10,312 12,735
Renminbi AR 2,039 2,861
32,714 40,328
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HREMBWRME

12

13

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

12

BRERER(HE)

24558 81 7 B M 0 5 1 S 4 2 @D L
T

Group

FEMR
2011 2010
Uss'000 US$'000
TER FX7T
At 1 lanuary »—A—H 1,522 2077
Provision for receivables impairment FE M 2 5 i 98 o = 11
Unused amounts reversed (Note 21) EEEAAEE (HE21) (139) (1,266)
At 31 December »t+-—_A=+—8 1,383 1,522

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement (Note 21). Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

fEm B AR I R R B ot AR S
Woas & m [TTER 3] P (B EE21) - A4
i il T B 1) < B — AR Y TE R S LR (5] EE A
B e -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 13 RaEREER/D
Bank balances totaling US$27,711,000 (2010: US$8,945,000) R_= F+ZA=+—B #iT#
and US%$17,067,000 (2010: US%$24,421,000) as at 31 BaeH27 TN 00ET(ZB—2F:
December 2011 were mainly placed with major state-owned 8,945,000 T ) 17,067,000 (=8
financial institutions in the PRC and Vietnam, respectively. BE: 244210005 ) S REATE
The remittance of these funds out of the PRC and Vietnam is EHEnTEREMEEE - A5 EE
subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and o o [ R g B i TP ob B R A R A b
Vietnamese governments. & & il i B -
Group Company
FEMm LT
2011 2010 2011 2010
Us$‘'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'o000
FER 2T FER FET
Cash at bank and on hand $TEEEER L 45,518 28,046 723 1,151
Short-term bank deposits BERITER = 6,490 = =
Cash and cash equivalents BEERBREEEY 45,518 34,536 723 1,151
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SR RRME

13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

13 RaEfaSRmlY (&)
FHREESCERSSEDEATERG

following currencies: {i
Group Company
A EE Fan
2011 2010 2011 2010
uss’000 US$'000 Uss‘000 Us$'000
TER FET TER FET
Vietnam Dong BEE 6,077 9,890 - -
uss E7T 11,574 15,300 550 728
Renminbi MEH 27,694 8,923 - -
Hong Kong dollar AT 85 45 85 45
New Taiwan dollar = 88 378 88 378
45,518 34,536 723 1,151
There was no short-term bank deposit held by the Group in - L

2011. The effective interest rate per annum of the Group's
short-term bank deposits in 2010 was 12.5%.

BEEFRA12.5% -

14 SHARE CAPITAL 14 BF
Authorised ordinary shares
*E SR
Par value Number of
uss shares us$'000
HEER 17 BB FET
At 31 December 2011 and BT =
31 December 2010 = = e S
—F—FTF I —A=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
ERTEGRERER
Par value Number of
uss shares uss$'000
HEER 7 B E =7
At 31 December 2011 and B ZE -
31 December 2010 = e S Y
=X L= = —H 0.01 1,522,742 ,000 15,228
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HREMBWRME

15 RESERVES 15 £E0E
(a) Group (a) #FHEM
Merger
reserve
Share Exchange (Mote) Retained
premium reserve & earnings Total
B i W ELEE (E) FEEH &
Us$'o00 L55°000 1s§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000
TE=r FEn FEn FEn TERT
At 1 January 2010 R-_%-%FF¥-H—B 47,358 10,308 79,994 116,078 253,738
Loss for the year EEEMEE = = = (1,480) (1,480)
Dividends paid Bk RS - - - (4,840 (4,840)
Exchange translation
differences [E & = % = 1,899 = = 1,899
At 31 December 2010 R=-2—2F+-A=+—H 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 249,317
Representing: Bp:
2010 Final dividend Babfiz—2—%%
proposed MRS 3,670
Others H fth 106,088
Retained earnings as at W-F—-FH+-A=+-—H
31 December 2010 ZEREBET 109,758
At 1 January 2011 B-%——F—-H—8E 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 749 317
Profit for the year ZEEET - - - 7,902 7,902
Dividends paid Bl A = - = (3,670) {3,670
Exchange translation
differancas [E 5 = - 3,061 - = 3,061
At 31 December 2011 R -_f——F+_A=+—H 47,358 15,268 79,994 113,990 256,610
Representing: Bp:
2011 Final dividend Bamfz—_8——%
proposed FHRE 4,740
Others Hih 109,250
Retained earnings asat H-%¥——F+-Hf=+—H
31 December 2011 ZEREET 113,990
Mote: i 1

AEEMEHEEDRRR DT - F
+2 A=+ 70 B Ak % B A R
0 20 AR 2 1 T R 1 O B
RIBLE 15 2R 15 2 MA K EA 2T -

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
recrganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange

therefor.
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GEMBHRRME
15 RESERVES (continued) 15 (e (8)
{(b) Company (b) &3
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
BiEHE REBET &
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FEL FEL FET
At 1 January 2010 BR-_E-ZF—HA—H 194,098 16,490 210,588
Profit for the year B i R - 4,954 4,954
Dividends paid Bk S - {4,840) (4,840)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZF-Z2F+-A=+-—H 194,098 16,604 210,702
Representing: BN
2010 Final dividend EEEHNZI-_T-ZF
praposed F AL B 3,670
Others Hit 12,934
Retained earnings asat MZ-T—TF+-A=+—8
31 December 2010 Z w8 BT 16,604
At 1 January 2011 R-F F£—H—H 194,098 16,604 210,702
Profit for the year X F B i R - 4,205 4,205
Dividends paid ERAIE - (3,670) (3,670)
At 31 December 2011 BT hEar s l=ar— 194,098 17,139 211,237
Representing: Bl
2011 Final dividend BERNZz _T——F
praposed FHAE 4,740
Others Hit 12,399
Retained earnings as at # =% #+_A=+-—H
31 December 2011 Z w8 EF 17,139
Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law EEFRERELRNZE(ZEE=F
{2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the 1E3THE ) E3E R T L Rl ER 4
Company, the share premium of the Company is available B« 2 2 Blag B (9 3 {8 Al 7R T A
for distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency Fr-ExEonEanaEEadaeTs
test on the Company and the provision of the Articles of L RlHIgER A E -

Association of the Company.
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GEMEHRRHET
16 TRADE PAYABLES 16 M HHBIER
At 31 December 2011, the ageing of trade payables based on iy F+-A=+—H EES
invoice date is as follows: EEESEEa R T
2011 2010
Us$'000 Us$'000
FERT xT
Current BN ER 21,504 22,754
31 - 90 days 31 290X 2,259 3,224
91 — 180 days 91 F 1807 33 35
181 — 365 days 1815 365K 5 1
Over 365 days £l S 16 ~
23,817 26,030

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

KR SR
= :

R E R T 5 E

2011 2010

uss'000 Us$'000

F 5T FEE

Vietnam Dong HEE 10,312 11,275
Uss ETT 12,875 14,130
Renminbi MNEE 630 625
23,817 26,030
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SR RRME

1 08 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

17 BANK BORROWINGS 17 SRITHER
Group Company
e L] FLH
2011 2010 2011 2010
uss‘000 Us§'000 uUss‘o00 US$'000
TED TET FER FET
Non-current 3k B 5
Bank borrowings wWITIEE
- secured (Notes 33 and 35) —&E#F
( fi&E3335) 15,260 19,538 - -
Current portion of non- JEENEARITIEE 2
current bank borrowings BRERER {0
- secured —HiEH (5,314) (4,279) - -
9,946 15,259 - -
Current B &
Bank borrowings HRITIEE
— secured (MNotes 33 and 35) —&#E#
( fff3E33835) 16,963 14,308 - =
~ unsecured — A1 5,850 9,288 5,850 9,288
22,813 23,596 5,850 9,288
As 31 December 2011, the Group's non-current bank i F+_A=+—RH -FEM=
borrowings were repayable as follows: FEENERIRITRE AR LT BifRE R -
Group Company
AR *F0H
2011 2010 2011 2010
uss'000 us$'000 uss'ooo0 US$'000
xR FET FET FET
Within 1 year i 5,314 4,279 = -
Between 1 and 2 years I £ I 4,679 5,214 - -
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 5,267 9,945 - -
15,260 19,538 - -
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G RMBRRMEE

17

BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 17

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to and the contractual
repricing dates at the end of the reporting period are as

B|ITHESE (&)

B 5 B+ 7 58 B R O 0 £ R A E
EHTEE M

follows:
Within 1-3 3-6
1 month months months Total
—EBAR -Z=f#A =EAEAR A
us$'0oo Us$ 000 Us§'000 Us$ 000
TR TE£ TEx TET
At 31 December 2011 BR-= T
1=A=1-H
Total borrowings EESE 12,082 8,752 16,339 38,073
At 31 December 2010 R-oBE—EF
Fi= 1—,5_ H
Total borrowings EESE 10,873 12,723 19,538 43,134

The exposure of the Company's borrowings to and the
contractual repricing dates at the end of the reperting period
are as follows:

REEF AR MARNEERNE
EHGIEBEERMT

Within 1-3 i-b
1 month months months Total
—EAA -Z={A ZEAEH &E
us$'ooo Us$ 000 US$ 000 Us$'000
TR FET FEx TR
At 31 December 2011 BR-® i
tT=H==>=H
Total borrowings EEma = 5,850 - 5,850
At 31 December 2010 BRoE-TF
e £ P e |
Total borrowings BEES 329 8,959 = 9,288
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e BHRRME
17 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 17 SRITHER (@)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end PHEHR FEMEEFHEOT

of the reporting period were as follows:

2011 2010
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
uss dollar uss dollar
e e EIT e
Bank borrowings HITEE 3.2% - 3.1% 2.4%
The effective interest rates per annum of the Company at the FHEEE AL BEERARET
end of the reporting period were as follows:
2011 2010
New MNew
Taiwan Taiwan
uss dollar us$ dollar
E e 7T e
Bank borrowings HITEE 3.2% - 2.2% 2.4%
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their WITEENEEAERE L FHES-
fair value.
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in BEEMFREMEL T &%
the following currencies:
Group Company
AEM FL4E
2011 2010 2011 2010
uss'000 Us$'000 uss‘o00 Us$'000
FET FET FTER FET
us$ e 38,073 42,146 5,850 8,300
New Taiwan dollar ek - 988 - 988
38,073 43,134 5,850 9,288

110 vedan International (Holdings) Limited WA BRI (ERIFRLE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

G RMBRRMEE

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 18 REFFS®R
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary R IE IS F6 T 16 48 B 0 LA 25 o 2 B AR
differences under the liability method using the principal tax EHEFERMTERERMEEREZEA
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. H-
The analysis of deferred income tax (assets)liabilities is as WIEFRGH(SE) AWM T
follows:
2011 2010
uss'000 Us$'000
F %G EEE
Deferred income tax assets BEMREBHEE
Deferred income tax assets to be Hr12{E A gl B =2
recovered after more than 12 months SRILERIS B E (42) =
Deferred income tax liabilities AL s ih B (A
Deferred income tax liabilities to be e 121E A & B 2
recovered after more than 12 months BIEMRSHEE 6,538 7,513
Deferred income tax liabilities, net MIEFGHAETE 6,496 7,93
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as WA S EHEmT
follows:
2011 2010
uss'000 Uss'000
F =T rEE
At 1 January m—H—H 7,513 8,050
Income statement credit (Note 24) A MR (MisE24) (1,017) {(537)
At 31 December e H == 6,496 7,513
Provided for in respect of: W5 IE R O
2011 2010
uss'000 Us$'000
FTER T 2E 7T
Accelerated tax depreciation B E 7,519 8,249
Dividend withholding tax on undistributed & B i I 2 5] & 5 E % 7
profit in the PRC subsidiary s B - 127
Other temporary differences HihEREE (1,023) (863)
6,496 2513
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GEMBRRME

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 18

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting

RIEFTRM (W)

of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: +:

Deferred income tax liabilities

BEFREHAMS

Dividend withholding
tax on undistributed

FERREMRGHAERAM (R RIE
F A 70 450 75 )05 A B ) 4 k) 0 2 D A

Accelerated tax profits in the
depreciation PRC subsidiary Total
TEMBLRETR

MEREARE EANMRERMNE =
2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010
Uss°000 UsS§'000 USS'000 US$'000 US$000 Us3$'000
%z ET %7 ET E §7 T
AL 1 January ®“—A—A 8,249 8,939 127 = 8,376 8,939

(Credited)/charged to the income  (Et A /HE S WEX

statement (730) {650} (127) 121 (857) (563)
At 31 December ®+=-A=+-H 7,519 8,249 - 127 7,519 8,376

According to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the
profits of the PRC subsidiary of the Group derived since 1st
January 2008 will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors.

Deferred income tax liabilities of US$790,000 (2010: Nil}
have not been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of a subsidiary. Such
amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted earnings
totalled US$9,440,000 at 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

ol
EREE B _F
ZwARE LSS

T—TEE) -

E Y
= Eio)

BEHFTEPERGHE TEMETF
Mo —RRNFE—F—BEESE
FGEF A S RETFIEEEENZFTE
FlE109% M £ & mEa-

37 5% A P B — ] Bif IR 2 1 AR [ ) Ly i 4
<2 TE 0T 7 57 iR I A 1% 75 & 790,000
T-TF8B) -FEFHEMKAR

=1 H

#/9,440,000%E T ( =

Deferred income tax assets MEFFBHEE
Other temporary differences

HttESE8
2011 2010
uss‘o00 uss$'o000
FET =T
At 1 January »—HA—B~ (863) (889)
(Credited)/charged to income statement (5tA) BBl (160) 26
At 31 December ety e = =t {(1,023) (863)
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19 REVENUE 19 K&
The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based THEMBEEHEERAERRME - &
food additives, biochemical products and cassava starch- tEREREERIRZER 28T
based industrial products including madified starch, glucose B EEEE - RE-GIT-ERES
syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Revenue recognised Heme R —— T - R—RT |
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 was A=+t—BUEFEzEERHEFR&
LJS$382,900,000 and US$336,107,000 respectively. 382,900,000 7t %336,107,0003 7T °
20 OTHER LOSSES - NET 20 RS — 9%
2011 2010
Us$'000 Us$'000
FE=R FET
Met exchange loss fEHEREE (964) (1,740)
Met loss from sale of electricity HEBNERDFE (10) (28)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME HER
plant and equipment FHER (146) (502)
Sale of scrap materials JREH 412 318
Interest income from held-to-maturity BFEERSMEEE
financial assets ) 8. A - 61
Others H A 397 (185)
(311) (2,076)
21 EXPENSES BY NATURE 21 BHHESBECME
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution HERE HERTHAEBETBRZAHM
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BEZEAZFINAT:
2011 2010
Us$'000 us$'oo00
FET FE
Changes in inventories of EERNERRTEER
finished goods and work-in-progress (12,732) (8,548}
Raw materials and consumables used EREHEFEESR 302,489 250,085
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) i B A O (P RER) 1,487 1,480
Amortisation of land use rights (Note &) + Hib {5 B HE M B (B AEB) 64 86
Auditor’s remuneration 2 B G B 350 329
Depreciation on property, R -EHEEREHTE
plant and equipment (Note 7) ([ aE7) 23,596 25,616
Impairment expense on property, i - BB B a8 ek
plant and equipment (Note 7) BEE(HE?) 4,255 2,055
Operating leases expenses in respect of EHEHEE T hiEERn s
leasehold land =k 163 159
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EREFME (ME28) 24,654 20,759
Write back of impairment of FE Wi B 3 B 2000 1R 4
trade receivables (Note 12) (PftsE12) (139) (1,255]
Other expenses HEihE = 34,544 28,755
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HERT - HE R T
expenses and administrative expenses M ETHRALER 378,731 319,541
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22 COMPENSATION TO FARMERS 22 BREMMK

On 8 October 2008, the Group received a decision from BR-EZTEFEF+-ANB - EHEMEMEED
the relevant government authority that the Group had been AEARTE AT EEEREME
in violation of certain environmental laws in Vietnam. The TFERBZEMZRE-FEEMES AT
Group was required to pay approximately US$16,000 and 16,0003 £ 7,713,000 TiE A B E
Us$7,713,000 as penalty and environmental fees respectively. RREA-ZHEZHFIZRRRRADR
All these penalty and environmental fees were recorded in —ER N\ErEaNEERIE - AR
the consolidated income statement in 2008. Due to this IRIGHRTE - MR - B EEEE k(e
environmental matter, farmer associations in Ho Chi Minh CAZEBEREREGIAEARMAEEEE
City, B4 Ria-Vung Tau Province and Dong Nai Province in B -B -2 NA+=F -FEH
Vietnam intended to file a court claim against the Group. On [Al E M EEET BB Es kR s
13 August 2010, the Group agreed to provide approximately HrBREWEEME1,807,000% T (48
Us%11,807,000 (equivalent to WND218,949,000,000) to H1218,949,000,0008mEE ) - T EHZH
farmer associations in Ho Chi Minh City, B4 Ria-Vung Tau REERABE_T—2F+_H=+—H
Province and Dong Mai Province in Vietnam. This has been WWEE ZHFE W R P i - 25 F W55
recorded in the consolidated income statement for the year HR—_E-FTFENAR_E——F—A%
ended 31 December 2010. The Group paid the amount in two e SR fAc0% EEREEZEE
instalments with 50% each in August 2010 and January 2011. RrZalrERdtRREFEMIMALA
The Directors obtained a legal opinion and considered that ERtEXEME-

there is no further significant liability to any parties in relation
to this environmental matter.

23 FINANCE COSTS - NET 23 HMERIH-2E
2011 2010
uUss’000 us$'000
TED FERL
Finance income — interest income Bt Bl A - HASR T E R
on short-term bank deposits LB W A (741) (968)
Interest expense on bank borrowings BITEEMNERE 1,632 1,420
Amortisation of discount on long-term EREREALZ
payable to a related party (Note 34(d)) FEHARET#EH
( Bt EE34(d) ) 188 276
Finance costs Rt B2 3 i 1,820 1,696
Finance costs — net Bt B 37 1 — Bl 1,079 728
Mo interest expenses on bank borrowings have been capitalised BERTEEZFIBREENEEERET
under property, plant and equipment for current year (2010: AYE BERREZEEX (ZF—TF:
Nil). ") o
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24

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

24

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

s WemX

St ) ) T8 TR 4 PO 15 SR e o
EEFEEROEARNEHE.

RiEelERATBMEHAZEE:

2011 2010

uss'000 Us$'000

F %G e

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") TEREH 6,101 5,119
Deferred income tax (Note 18) BERSE (Maz18) (1,017) (537)
5,084 4,582

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax

differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

applicable tax rate for Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation

Limited ("Vietnam Vedan"), which is a major subsidiary of the

Group, as follows:

5 B R A AR E AR FIR Fris RS
HATEMFERBoa] - (SR
AR LB ([HMEEA ) MERHER
FSTEMERTENANEENAT

2011 2010
Uss$'000 Us$'000
FET FE
Profit befare tax e B Al i 11,021 1,855
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 15% R MFH E 15U EF
(2010: 15%) BE(ZB—TF:
15% ) 1,653 293
Tax effects of different tax rates TRMEZHEEE 220 129
Income not subject to tax SR A — (1)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TRl Mz A E 1,589 3,542
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax A2 Al R RN E R
losses (10) (134)
Over-provision in prior year EREFEEERN (127) =
Tax losses arising for which no deferred EREDRILAIGHEEM
income tax asset was recognised EECHBEER 1,759 753
Tax charge 1A 52 5,084 4,582
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24

25

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
Us$21,544,000 (2010: US$13,845,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses will expire in
one to five years.

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rates for the Group's operations in
Vietnam range from 15% to 25%, as stipulated in the
respective subsidiaries’ investment licenses.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rates for the Group's operation in the
PRC range from 12.5% to 25%.

Shanghai Vedan, Shandong Vedan Snowflake and Xiamen
Maotai are entitled to full exemption from EIT for the first
two years and 50% reduction in EIT for the next three
years, commencing from the first profitable year after
offsetting all unexpired tax losses brought forward from
the previous years. Shanghai Vedan, Shandong Vedan
Snowflake and Xiamen Maotai have already triggered
their first years of tax exemption entitlement, in 2005,
2006 and 2008 respectively.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong

Mo Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as

the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or

derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year.

Taiwan
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in
Taiwan is 25%.

(iv)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
Us$4,205,000 (2010: US$4,954,000).
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FReMAX (W)
BIEFFSHEEDREBB MR ETE
BAFRERHEF BERRFAEED
HEERELEE - TREESREAH
HEWR21,544,000FE T (B — T
13,845,000 71 ) Al f& S LA HEL 8 R SR FE AR
WA -ZFHEERER —EERFM
B Hy -

b 3% BTG 35 4 A 7 B SR R T Bl AT B
BB RR 15 3 i 88 2R SR B o T AT+ e i
HEfFHhAE-

(i) #E
MRS B mEET A EATET
B AEMEMENERERTE
ARt R TF15%F25% =

(i) +H
2 W GE R E A R R e AR O ¥R
BHETT12.5%F25% -

AR - LEFRASEEEMES
TE 3 48 B 5 1B 1 4 A5 A R 1A Y
HIEEHAE S EERMEERER
TARNFRYRETERNMEHES
BHE=EFErRE50%1TXM{F
HEE- EAREA-ILERASEER
EMEFESIER_STAFE -_F%
TRER_TENFEAEFEH
Ef -

g EE

ER A S () S K S JBE 9 SR 7E BT A0
EESHRDSESEAERFEN
B E|AE R SNk BEMNGH
A -

(iii)

=8 |
FEMESENEFENBEASER
BHERIDY -

(iv)

ELFIMAEAMEET

AT LAHBERENELEHE AE
1l 4t # £4,205,0008 T (=B — B HF:
4,954,000%= ) =
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26 DIVIDENDS 26 BB
The dividends paid in 2011 and 2010 were US$3,670,000 ¥ FEE_E-TEEBES
{0.240 US cents per ordinary share) and US$4,840,000 (0.317 Bl #3,670,0003 7t ( 82 A% % @ f20.240%
US cents per ordinary share) respectively. Final dividend in i) 24,840,0005 T (S % H A0 317
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 of 0.311 US S} -HBE_F f+—_A=+1+
cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend BItFEE - EEARGAREE ST R
of US$4,740,000, is to be proposed and approved by the 0.3113 1L - B B @ E 54,740,000 7T
sharehalders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. EREEHRERERFEEATAE LIEZ 0
These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. {H s B A A - AR B A 3R R 0 SR P B gk FE
REE -
2011 2010
Us$'000 us$'o000
FET F =T
2011 final dividend, proposed of BE-T & 7 Ef
0.311 US cents (2010: 0.240 US cents) Az 2 & Az B imAx
per ardinary share 0.3113&4
(Z2—FF:
0.2403%1ll) 4,740 3,670
The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and proposed - FER_E-—EFEEERERE
during 2011 and 2010 have been disclosed in the income R O R A B B R R U
statement in accordance with the disclosure requirements of EHEE-
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
27 EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE 27 SBREH.(BER)
(a) Basic (a) E#F
Basic earnings/(losses) per share is calculated by dividing SREERF (BHR)EER o EHE
the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by BAEGER (BR)BULERE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BT AR ENE TR E
during the year.
2011 2010
uss$'000 Us$'000
FE=R =T
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of 2 TIHE ARES
the Company aaFL (R ) 7,902 (1,480)
Weighted average number of £ 8 47 T 3 A 0 HE 1 B
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (AF&H) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings/(lasses) per share BlRERBR(ERE)
(US cents per share) (=) 0.52 {0.10)
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27

28

29

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings/(losses) per share is same as basic
earningsf{losses) per share as there are no dilutive
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

27 SERAH(BEH) (&)

(b) &%
BE_T——FR_F—BF+_
A=t—BHL$E fhRIEHBET
A-shR#EREF(BR)ESR
EXFZF (BR)ER -

28 EAEMMX (ABEEETEMN)

2011 2010

uss'o00 Us$'000

FER o T

Wages, basic salaries and allowances IH-E#HFERR 20,122 17,780
Bonuses JEET 345 -
Pension costs — defined contribution plans E{RSEE — FEH# I 8| 1,837 1,462
Other employee benefits Hib{E 8 EF 2,350 1,517
24,654 20,759

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored defined contribution retirement
plans for its employees in Xiamen, Shandong and Shanghai,
the PRC. The Group contributes to the plans at rates ranging
from 8% to 22% of the basic salaries predetermined by
local governments. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees. For the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Group has contributed approximately US$589,000 (2010:
US$415,000) to the aforesaid state-sponsored retirement plans.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the Group
contributes to stated-sponsored employees’ social insurance
scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group contributes
to the scheme at a rate of 15% of the employee’s salary. The
state-sponsored social insurance scheme is responsible for
the entire obligations payable to retired employees. For the
year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has contributed
approximately US%$1,094,000 (2010: U5$920,000) to the
aforesaid state-sponsored social insurance scheme.
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 EFEEEETEEENTM
MANAGEMENT
{a) The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable fa) FEEXEEMEELIAFEFENANR
ta the directors of the Company by the Group during the R BB mEanT :

year are as follows:

2011 2010
Uss$'000 uUss'ooo
FER F 25
Fees g - -
Basic salaries and allowances [EE. % Fe 3 B 1,109 1,109
Discretionary bonuses B 2 H e TR 4T 345 -
1,454 1,109
None of the directors of the Company waived any FEEFLCRETTEMEEMEH
emoluments during the year (2010: Nil). M—E—=F E)-
The remuneration of every director of the Company for BE—% b= = —FlE
the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out below: FEELAEEEMEHME DT -
Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
EftEH
Name of Director EEns LE Bt BEZHEL (ME) At
Us§'000 Us§'o00 Us$'000 153000 155000
T#R TER TR TER TET
Executive Director UTHE
M. Yang, Tou-Hsiung EESEE - LY 125 13 479
M. Yang, Cheng BERE - 100 10 13 13
M. Yang, Kun-Hzizng BEELE - 305 110 13 428
M. Yang, Chen-Wan BRIEE - 150 100 13 163
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng ARELE - - - 12 12
M. Huang, Ching-lung EEERE - - - 13 13
Independent non-executive RUFUTES
Director
M. Chao, Pei-Hong HEERE - - - 12 12
M. Chen, Joen-Ray EEEEE - - - 12 12
M. Ko, Jim-Chen AEERE - - - 12 12
Total =1l = 996 345 113 1454
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 EFREREEEOTM (@)

MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) (continued) tay (&)

The remuneration of every director and senior BE_Z—-FTF+-_A=+—AH1t
management of the Company for the year ended 31 FREFALASEESTEARTEREN
December 2010 is set out below: MR F| W T
Other
Discretionary benefits
Feas Salary bonuses (Note) Total
HUEH
Name of Director f ¢33 g ¥2 BERBEL (Wi Bt
Us§ 000 UsS'000 155000 US$'000 us$'000
TER TER &7 T T&n
Executive Director HiTHE
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BERLE - 341 - 13 354
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - 200 - 13 13
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang Baggt - 305 - 13 318
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BEXAE - 150 - 13 163
Non-executive Director FUOTEE
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng BBERE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung EESEE - - - 13 13
Independent non-executive EE RS §
Director
Mr. Chag, Pei-Hong EREERE - - - 12 12
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray 7§35 bk - - - 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen gLt - - - 12 12
Tatal A5t - 396 - 113 1,109
Naote: B -
Other benefits include travelling allowance. HtEfmEskaEmh-

(b) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest by FEWEEEANTEZERFHFMAL
in the Group for the year included four (2010: four) BEME(ZE—2F: UL ) 8517
executive directars, their emoluments are reflected in the ER -HENMEERLNEN S
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the PR -FFEENMRTHT—&
remaining one (2010: one) individual during the year are AT(ZE—Z2F:—F)zMEm
as follows: s

2011 2010

uss'000 uUs$'000

FER FEx

Basic salaries and allowances JES #r B # B 123 111

(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid to fc) FEELTE@ECIEERETEMN
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid hfiEEEHMALTEMME  EAT
individuals of the Group as an inducement to join or as B 0 A2 £ (3 e e D o R I A -
compensation for loss of office.

There are no outstanding share options as at 31 H_B——FR_T-—-TF+_A
December 2011 and 2010. =t BB RITE
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 ENELEZRE
2011 2010
Us$'000 Us$'o0o00
FE=R FERT
Profit before income tax [ BT 45 1 A i F 11,021 1,955
Adjustments for: MEATHEBAE:
- Finance costs — net (Note 23) — BB S ) — 3
(fff5E23) 1,079 728
— Interest received from held-to-maturity — Bl EER B i
financial assets (Note 20) HEZ 8 (HiE20) - (61)
- Share of post tax loss of an associate — FE fly — ] Bk 2 1 B PR TR 1R
(Note 10) B R CHE10) 222 -
— Depreciation of property, plant and — P - BERRHITE
equipment (Note 7) (Bt aE7) 23,596 25,616
— Provision for impairment of property, — ¥ - ELE B AR e
plant and equipment (Note 7) 1o (B RETD 4,255 2,055
- Write back of provision for —FEE B AR B et
impairment of trade receivables i 4 4 0
(Note 12) (FffF12) (139) (1,255)
- Amortisation of intangible assets — i A A (f 8D
(Mote 8) 1,487 1,490
- Amortisation of land use rights — 1 ih i FE HE S §H
(Note 6) (Bt k6 64 86
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —HEWME - BEREMH
equipment (see below) BFR(RETx) 146 502
- Gain on disposal of non-current assets —HERHELE IR
held for sale (see below) AEWZ(RTX) (8,464) =
33,267 31,116
Change in working capital {excluding REEEEH (RFESHEE
the effects of exchange differences on EFXEHEZEREE)
consolidation)
- Inventories -FH (12,145) (17,597)
— Trade receivables, prepayments and —ENE BB  FERE
other receivables B H fth FE UL F08 4,155 (12,237)
- Trade payables, accruals and other —FENESED  EEA
payables B H fth fE (< B I (9,094) 20,461
- Amount due from the non-cantrolling — FE Ul — ] BT 1O 2 B SR AR
interest of a subsidiary A - (20)
- Net changes in balance with related —HEMELABREL
companies EE M (4) 237
Cash generated from operations BHELHE 16,179 21,960
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale
of property, plant and equipment and non-current assets held
for sales comprise:

REEEZRE (W)

EmeRenEXZA LEDE -BER
RHMERIEL GRS EEZREFTED
i

2011 2010

uss‘'o00 us$'000

xR =

Met book amount (Note 7) AR R (M A7) 442 663
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE KR REMEIR

plant and equipment (Note 20) (HizE20) (146) (502)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEMSE  WERAMAGS

plant and equipment mE 296 166

2011 2010

uss‘000 uUs$'000

TED F=T

Net book amount (Note 6) AR T F (W aEe) 12,415 =

Transfer to land use rights (Note 6) S8 2 A (HAEe) (1,574) -
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERELEETHEEZ

held for sale (Note 6(ii)) W gk ( B eE6(i) ) 8,464 -
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets HEFIELEETHEE S

held for sale P 15 018 19,305 -

32 COMMITMENTS 32 B
(a) Capital commitments (a) EFAR

The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end

FEMPESHAETTHERESE

of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: ZEFRETHWT
2011 2010
uss‘000 Us§'000
xR FET
Contracted but not provided for EEEEES L
Property, plant and equipment WE-HEREMH 2,115 825
Investment in an associate (Note) H—EBELRZRE
(&) 5,190 5,190
7,305 6,015
Nate: Bk -

Details of investment are disclosed in Mote 10.
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32 COMMITMENTS (continued) 32 ki ()
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EEENZFER
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease ZHEMBEET I HMESERNE L
payments in respect of land and building under non- WMERFERARLIANEERE
cancellable operating leases as follows: FIEMENT -
2011 2010
Us$'000 Us$'000
FET X
No later than one year A 134 120
Later than one year and no later FERERERN
than five years 479 474
Later than five years T £ {8 3,038 3,104
3,651 3,698
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 EHRAR
At 31 December 2011, the Company has given quarantees for i Fo= B = e
bank barrowings of subsidiaries amounting to US$91,800,000 ca A BorcBITEEREERE
{(2010: US$84,800,000) of which US$59,578,000 (2010: {R#91,800,000E L (=2 F —2F:
1JS$50,953,000) has not been utilised. 84,800,000 7i.) * H #$159,578,000% 7T
(=2 — T4 :50,953,000F 7T ) i K&
% -]
34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3 AREATER
{a) The table below summarises the related party and nature (a) TEH#HRIER_-F T ]
of its relationship with the Company as at 31 December =t—BZEHEATRHEBREIL
2011: AR BRI E -
Related party Relationship with the Company
FHEAL HELANEAE
Taiwan Vedan A substantial shareholder of the Company
& EoarmEERE
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

34 AHEATER (&)

(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EXFEEEEEPHAMEEAL
out in the normal course of the Group’s business are as ETHMEBELZENT

followws:

2011 2010

Note uss'ooo US$'000

o TR FER

Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan MEEERHEER (i) 1,313 4,137
Technological suppert fee paid to [ & &G £ 3 {1 # i

Taiwan Vedan RER (it} 2,734 2,441

Agency commission income [ & 38 B P WCER By

received from Taiwan Vedan H£ERE WA {ii) 57 149

MNotes: B o -

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) FLAREBR SN MEEALIE
the related party were conducted in the normal course HZzEEEEARESPET B
of business at prices and terms no less favourable than EBREER T TERAENEH#
those charged to and contracted with other third party E=EERFZSmE BRETAM
customers of the Group. B4 B i R -

{iil  In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (i) FLFEFDAEFLIERR
transactions were carried out in the normal course of FERhiETT - 17 B R 5B M R
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the IRR Y -
terms of underlying agreements.

() Key management compensation (c) FTEEELEME

The compensation paid or payable to key management,

including all executive directors, for employee services is

shown below.

ENsERETEEEAR (BN
EHMTESR) &R R MET|m
—Fq

2011 2010
uss'o000 Us$ ‘000
FET T
Salaries and other short-term 0 o 2 H i 52 HA R & 8 A
employee benefits 1,516 1,159
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 EREALATER(E)
(d) Year-end balances with the related party (d) HERELLZEFRiEE
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had the following BR-_B——F+-"A=1+—H &%
significant balances with the related party: EHEHESMEAL - TERBIOT:
2011 2010
Mote Uss$'000 Us$'000
it & TEx FET
Current: BNER:
Trade receivable fram Taiwan Bl s ER A E SR
Vedan (Note 12) (Fte£12) (i) 110 250
Other receivable from Taiwan HhFE Y & = A E
Vedan (i) 518 41
Due to Taiwan Vedan FEft & BEARE (i) 323 323
Current portion of the amount EREETEEAS B
due to Taiwan Vedan in IR Fl Th 18 7 BN A
connection with assignment of
trademarks (i) 2,076 1,957
Non-current: FEBNEA :
Non-current portion of the EHEEREEASeE
amount due to Taiwan Vedan IR P 318 7 FEENHEA
in connection with assignment Hoa
of trademarks (i) - 2,074
Motes: B o -
i) All these balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, (i) ERFERAMAAMESRIER -
interest-free and have no fixed terms of payment. SERBETREZRA-
(i) ~ The amount represents the fair value payable to Taiwan i) EREBAERHBEESTEEM
Vedan for the assignment of certain trademarks. It is EtEeEKAZHRES L TFE-
payable by seven equal annual instalment commencing HAR-ST+F—H—HE F
on 1 January 2007. The original face amount was BastHEFa-FREMES
US%15,014,000 and was discounted to fair value using a 15,014, 000% T FEBEHER
rate based on the borrowing rate of 4.7% at the date of BZREMEBATEGH 7 FIE0
assignment of the trademarks (Note 23). BELFHE(ME23) -
35 BANKING FACILITIES 35 @B|iTEH
Save as disclosed in MNotes 17 and 33 to the financial MR FEEEME1TEIIMEEE I
statements, the Group's bank borrowings of US$32,223,000 as EHEMER - s e ol

at 31 December 2011 {2010: U5$33,846,000) were secured by
legal charges over certain of the Group's property, plant and

Hz@THE32,223.000EL (-8

T 33,846,000 L) HEME F
H6921,104,000E R (=2 — B £ :
22715000 ) 2 ETAE MM E - &
EEAMH(HE7) ZZER2 L KR

equipment (Note 7) with net book amount of approximately
US$21,104,000 (2010: US%22,715,000).
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